
 
Agenda compiled by: 
Tel No: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
 

 
Helen Gray 
247 4355 
 
 
 

 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

A 

 

 

 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

 
MEETING TO BE HELD IN CIVIC HALL, LEEDS ON 

 
MONDAY, 26TH MARCH, 2012 AT 10.00 AM 

 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
J Dunn - Ardsley and Robin Hood; 

R D Feldman - Alwoodley; 

G Hussain - Roundhay; 

 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

   PRELIMINARY PROCEDURES 
 

 

1     ELECTION OF THE CHAIR 
 

 

2   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded) 
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting) 
 
 

 



 

C 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
 
1) To highlight reports or appendices which: 
  
a) officers have identified as containing exempt 

information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
b) To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
c) If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
those parts of the agenda designated as 
containing exempt information on the grounds that 
it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to 
be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information 
 
2) To note that under the Licensing Procedure 
rules, the press and the public will be excluded 
from that part of the hearing where Members will 
deliberate on each application  as it is in the public 
interest to allow the Members to have a full and 
frank debate on the matter before them. 
 

 

4   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify any applications as late items of 
business which have been admitted to the agenda 
for consideration 
 
 (the special circumstances shall be identified in 
the minutes) 
 
 

 



 

D 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

5   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Members are reminded to declare any interests at 
the start of the hearing on each application for the 
purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local Government 
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of the Members 
Code of conduct 
 
 

 

   HEARINGS 
 

 

6   
 

City and 
Hunslet; 

 "BEAT BAR" - APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT 
OF A PREMISES LICENCE FOR BEAT BAR, 66 
MERRION STREET, LEEDS LS2 8LW 
 
To consider the report of the Head of Licensing 
and Registration on an application for the grant of 
a Premises Licence in respect of “Beat Bar”, 66 
Merrion Street, Leeds LS2 
 
(Report attached) 
 

1 - 36 

7   
 

Headingley;  CERTIFICATION OF FILMS - HYDE PARK 
PICTURE HOUSE 
 
To consider the report of the head of Licensing and 
Registration on an application for the certification 
of a film proposed to be shown at the Hyde Park 
Picture House, Headingley 
 
(Report attached) 
 

37 - 
40 

 



1

Report of the Head of Licensing and Registration 

Report to the Licensing Sub Committee 

Date:  Monday 26th March 2012 

Subject:  Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence for Beat Bar, 66 Merrion 
Street, Leeds, LS2 8LW 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): City & Hunslet 

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of Main Issues  

1. This is an application for the grant of a Premises Licence for Beat Bar, 66 Merrion 
Street, Leeds, LS2 8LW. 

2. The application is made in respect of a former nightclub whose Premises Licence 
was surrendered on 7th June 2010. 

3. Various provisions of Regulated Entertainment, Late Night Refreshment and the 
Sale of Alcohol are proposed in this application. The hours applied for are noted at 
3.3 of this report. 

4. These premises are located within Cumulative Impact Area 1 – City Centre.

5. Responsible Authorities and Ward Members have been notified of this application. 

Recommendations

The Committee is asked to: 

1. consider the application and any relevant representations; and 

2. take any of the steps detailed at 10.1 they consider necessary for the promotion of 
the Licensing Objectives. 

Report Author:  Mr Matthew Nelson 

 0113 247 4095

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



2

1.0 Purpose of this Report 

1.1 To advise Members of an application made under section 17 of the Licensing Act 
2003 ("the Act") for a Premises Licence in respect of the above mentioned 
premises.

1.2 Members are required to consider this application due to the receipt of 
representations.

2.0 History of Premises 

2.1 These premises previously had the benefit of a Premises Licence issued under 
the Licensing Act 2003. The premises originally traded as Bassment but later 
changed the name to Subculture following an application to transfer the licence in 
September 2006. 

The licence holder for Subculture surrendered the Premises Licence on 7th June
2010. No application to transfer the licence was made within the statutory period 
and the licence subsequently lapsed. 

These premises are now under new management, as per the application, and 
Members should note that there is no connection to the previous operator. 

It should also be noted that a similar application for the grant of a Premises 
Licence was previously received by these applicants and considered at hearing 
on 3rd January 2012. 

Members resolved to refuse this application entirely. 

3.0 The Application 

3.1 The applicants are Mr Ravinder Rathore and Mr Gurmail Rathore. 

3.2 The application form can be found at Appendix A to this report. 

3.3 In summary the application is for: 

3.3.1 Supply of Alcohol (for consumption on the premises) 
 12:00 until 04:00 hrs Monday to Sunday 

3.3.2 Late Night Refreshment 
  23:00 until 04:00 hrs Monday to Sunday 

3.3.3 Regulated Entertainment  
 12:00 until 04:00 hrs Monday to Sunday 

3.3.4 Time when the premises will be open to the public: 
 12:00 until 04:00 hrs Monday to Sunday 

3.3.5 Non Standard Timings: 
From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve, to the start of 
permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 

1.0

Page 2



3

At the start of British Summertime, the terminal hour for all licensable 
activities shall be extended by one hour. 

4.0 Other Matters Relevant to the Application 

4.0 It is brought to Members attention that all forms of regulated entertainment are to 
take place indoors only. 

4.1 At the time of writing this report there were no implications for equality and 
diversity. Any decision taken by the Licensing Sub-Committee will be in 
accordance with the four Licensing Objectives as prescribed by the Licensing Act 
2003.

5.0 Steps to Promote the Licensing Objectives 

5.0 The application proposes to take the steps identified in section “P” of the 
application form to promote the licensing objectives.

6.0 Designated Premises Supervisor 

6.0 Mr Ravinder Rathore intends to be the Designated Premises Supervisor. 

7.0 Location 

7.0 A map identifying the location of this premise is attached at Appendix B of this 
report.

8.0 Cumulative Impact Policy 

8.0 These premises are located within the City Centre Cumulative Impact Area 1. 

8.1 Cumulative impact represents the potential impact on the promotion of the 
licensing objectives due to the high concentration of licensed premises within a 
designated area. 

8.2 An applicant wishing to obtain a new licence for a premises falling within any of 
the cumulative impact areas must identify through the risk assessment process 
and/or operating schedule the steps they intend to take so that the Licensing 
Authority and Responsible Authorities can be satisfied that the granting of a new 
licence will not add to the impact already being experienced. 

8.3 Details of the Cumulative Impact Policy specific to Area 1 – City Centre, and an 
outline of the evidence behind the reasoning of this policy is attached at Appendix 
C.

9.0 Representations 

9.0 Under the Act representations can be received from Responsible Authorities or 
Interested Parties. Representations must be relevant and, in the case of an 
Interested Party, must not be frivolous or vexatious. 

Page 3



4

9.1 Representations from Responsible Authorities

9.1.1 An outright representation has been received from West Yorkshire Police in their 
capacity as a Responsible Authority. Member’s attention is drawn to Appendix D 
of this report. 

9.1.2 A further outright representation has been submitted by Environmental Health in 
their capacity as a Responsible Authority. A copy of which can be found at 
Appendix E.

9.2 Representations from Interested Parties

9.2.1 The application has not attracted any representations from Interested Parties. 

10.0 Options Available to Members 

10.0 The Licensing Sub Committee must take such of the following steps as it 
considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives: 

 Grant the application as requested. 

 Grant the application whilst imposing additional conditions and/or altering in 
any way the proposed operating schedule. 

 Exclude any licensable activities to which the application relates. 

 Refuse to specify the said person as the Designated Premises Supervisor. 

 Reject whole or part of the application. 

10.1 Members of the Licensing Sub Committee are asked to note that they may not 
modify the conditions or reject whole or part of the application merely because it 
considers it desirable to do so. It must actually be necessary in order to promote 
the Licensing Objectives. 

11.0 Background Papers 

 Guidance issued under s182 Licensing Act 2003 

 Leeds City Council Licensing Policy 

 Representations received from Interested Parties 

Page 4



Appendix A

Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Leeds City Council

Entertainment Licensing

Date:

Scale:

This map is based upon the Ordnance Survey’s Digital Data with the 

Permission of the Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her 

Majesty’s Stationary Office

© Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead 

to prosecution or civil proceedings

Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No 100019567

© Crown Copyright all rights reserved

PREM/03146/001 - Beat Bar

66 Merrion Street, Leeds, LS2 8LW

09 March 2012

1:2000

Appendix B

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Cumulative Impact Policy

Area 1 - City Centre

Cumulative Impact Policy 

Area 1 as defined on the map relates to the city centre.  

Fig 1 

It is the council’s policy, on receipt of relevant representations, to refuse new and variation 

applications in Area 1 for alcohol led premises such as bars, pubs and nightclubs and for 
premises seeking late night refreshment such as takeaways and late opening restaurants, unless 

the applicant can demonstrate that their application would not impact on the cumulative effect of 

such licensed premises in the area. 

Rationale 

In the five years since the cumulative impact policy for the city centre was introduced, the City 
Centre has changed.  Recent crime statistics show three main hot spots for crime and disorder: 

1. Call Lane, Boar Lane and the area behind the Corn Exchange 

2. Woodhouse Lane, Merrion Way and Wade Lane 

3. The east end of The Headrow and New Briggate 

Other areas of concern include the Eastgate area and Briggate. 

The council has noticed an increase in applications for premises licences in the Park Square area.  
It is feasible that this is due to displacement from the East Parade/Greek Street/Park Row part of 

the cumulative impact policy. 

On reviewing these facts and the previous cumulative impact policy, the council has amended the 

geographical area of the cumulative impact policy to incorporate the crime hotspots and the Park 
Square area.

In addition there is rising concern about premises which have not been included within the scope 

of the previous policy, such as restaurants serving hot food and drink after 11pm.  These 
premises have also contributed to crime, disorder and public nuisance in the city centre. 

The previous policy referenced high volume vertical drinking establishments.  This reference has 

been removed as it is recognised that all alcohol led licensed premises can contribute to crime 

and disorder in the area, not just those that are classified as “high volume vertical drinking” 
establishments. 

CIP Area 1 City Centre 

Appendix C

Page 27



Evidence

Fig 2 

Nuisance reports in Area 1 (2005 – 2010) 

Fig 2 shows the number and location of nuisance reports received by Leeds City Council, relevant 
to licensed premises in Area 1 since 2005. 

Police analysis has shown the following key findings relating to serious crime in Area 1: 

94% of serious violent offences have been committed in the night-time economy (NTE) 
period.

63% of offences committed in the NTE are affected by alcohol 
20% of offences committed in the NTE are committed within licensed premises 

Between 2008 and 2009 incidents have increased by 26 equating to a 32% rise. 

Fig 3 

Serious Violent Crime hot-spots 

Fig 3 shows density of serious violent crime offences in Area 1.  The coloured dots are 

licensed premises however, have not been identified individually by name. 

CIP Area 1 City Centre 
Page 28



Fig 4 

Assault hot-spots 

Fig 4 shows density of assault offences in Area 1. 

Fig 5

Anti-Social Behaviour hot-spots 

Fig 5 shows density of anti-social behaviour offences in Area 1. 

The current CIP for Area 1 (Licensing Act 2003 Statement of Licensing Policy 2008-2010) does 
not cover large parts of the city centre which currently suffer from nuisance and crime 

attributable to licensed premises.  

Extracted from the Final Consultation Report published in December 2010 which presented the findings of 
the review of the cumulative impact policies and the subsequent public consultation on the amended 
Statement of Licensing Policy which took place in 2010.  The full report is available from Entertainment 

Licensing. 

CIP Area 1 City Centre 
Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED   

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Leeds District Licensing Department

Licensing Department 
Millgarth Police Station 
Millgarth Street 
Leeds 
LS2 7HX 

Tel:   0113-2413072
Fax:  0113-2413123 
Email:
catherine.arkle@westyorkshire.pnn.police.uk 
Website: 

Your ref:         
Our ref:          

            

1st March 2012 
                      
Mr.Chris Rees-Gay 
Woods Whur Solicitors 
Devonshire House 
38, York Place 
Leeds
LS1 2ED 

cc. Entertainment Licensing Section. Leeds City Council, Civic Hall, Leeds. LS1 1UR 

RE: BEAT BAR,  66, MERRION STREET, LEEDS, LS2 8LW 
 NEW PREMISES LICENCE – LICENSING ACT 2003: 
 POLICE – LETTER OF REPRESENTATION – CUMULATIVE IMPACT POLICY:

Thank you for submitting your application for the above premises, received at the address above on 3rd 
February 2012. 

The application relates to premises which fall within one of the areas of Leeds currently subject to a 
policy of cumulative impact, as detailed in the present Statement of Licensing Policy 2011-2013, issued 
by Leeds City Council as the licensing authority. 

The area concerned in this particular case is Area 1 Leeds City Centre. 

Therefore, in line with the current statutory guidance issued by the Secretary of State under Section 182 
Licensing Act 2003, West Yorkshire Police make representations based on the cumulative impact policy 
of the area concerned and highlighted above, where the licensing objectives and particularly the 
prevention of crime and disorder and prevention of public nuisance objectives, are being adversely 
affected.

CIP - Area 1 – Leeds City Centre:
There has been a policy of cumulative impact in Leeds City Centre since January 2005, as a part of the 
original Statement of Licensing Policy issued by Leeds City Council, made to introduce the ‘transitional 
provisions’ of Licensing Act 2003 in February 2005 to full implementation in November 2005.  

Appendix D

Page 31



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED   

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED   

As a part of the process back then, in 2004 West Yorkshire Police provided detailed statistical analysis of 
alcohol related crime and disorder and anti social behaviour, in relation to specific areas of the City 
Centre.
The original policy only applied to certain isolated parts of Leeds City Centre. 
In 2007, as part of the first 3 year review of Leeds City Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy, further 
statistical evidence was produced by West Yorkshire Police to ascertain if there was the continuing need 
for a policy of cumulative impact in Leeds City Centre. 
As a result, in December 2007 the revised Statement of Licensing Policy 2007-2010 was issued by 
Leeds City Council, and whilst the policy of cumulative impact for Leeds City Centre was to continue, 
there was very little if any relevant change in the wording of the policy and no change at all in the 
affected areas of the City Centre. 
A second review of the Statement of Licensing Policy has taken place in Leeds in 2010 and a 3rd edition 
has been issued by Leeds City Council as recently as early January 2011. 
During this lengthy process, West Yorkshire Police, after being requested to do so, once again provided 
an up to date 2 year statistical overview of violent offences and anti-social behaviour in Leeds City 
Centre as a whole. 

As a result, on this occasion the policy of cumulative impact for Leeds City Centre has radically 
changed, both in -: 

1. a significantly increased geographical area, and 
2. modification of the wording of the policy, to include all types of alcohol led premises, 

rather than just a specific type of premises serving alcohol.

The current Statement of Licensing Policy goes into further detail about the significant changes recently 
made and highlighted above. 
For instance-: 

 Paragraph 7.16 – “In the five years since the cumulative policy for the city centre was introduced, 
the City Centre has changed. Recent crime statistics show three main hot spots for crime and 
disorder:

1. Call Lane, Boar Lane and the area behind the Corn Exchange 
2. Woodhouse Lane, Merrion Way and Wade Lane 
3. The east end of The Headrow and New Briggate. 

 Paragraph 7.17 – “Other areas of concern include the Eastgate area and Briggate”. 

 Paragraph 7.19 – “On reviewing these facts and the previous cumulative impact policy, the 
council has amended the geographical area of the cumulative impact policy to incorporate the 
crime hotspots…………”. 

 Paragraph 7. 20 – “In addition there is rising concern about premises which have not been 
included within the scope of the previous policy, such as restaurants serving hot food and drink 
after 11pm. These premises have also contributed to crime, disorder and public nuisance in the 
city centre. 

 The previous policy referenced high volume vertical drinking establishments. This reference has 
been removed as it is recognised that all alcohol led premises can  contribute to crime and 
disorder in the area……………….” 

The wording for the current policy of cumulative impact for Leeds City Centre therefore now 
reads-:
“It is the council’s policy, on receipt of relevant representations, to refuse new and variation 
applications in Area 1 for alcohol led premises such as bars, pubs and nightclubs and for 
premises seeking late night refreshment such as takeaways and late opening restaurants, unless 
the applicant can demonstrate that their application would not add to the cumulative impact of 
such licensed premises in the area”. 

Page 32



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED   

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED   

The location of the premises is on the corner of Merrion Street and Wade Lane. Wade Lane is named in 
Leeds City Council’s statement of Licensing Policy as one of the three main hot spots for crime and 
disorder.

Therefore, in terms of location, in terms of operating as a nightclub, and in terms of the proposed trading 
from 12:00hrs until 04:00hrs West Yorkshire Police consider that this application implicates the current 
policy of cumulative impact for Leeds City Centre in every respect, and would rely on paragraphs 13.29 
and 13.30 of the current Section 182 guidance in making this representation.  

PC Cath Arkle 
Divisional Licensing Officer 
City & Holbeck 

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



www.leeds.gov.uk general enquiries 0113 222 4444 

Dear Mr Rees-Gay 

Licensing Act 2003 
Name of Premises:  Beat Bar 
Address:  66 Merrion Street, Leeds, LS2 8LW 

I refer to your recent application for a licence to carry on activities at the above premises. 

It is noted that the applicant has submitted steps they intend to take to promote the 
prevention of public nuisance. Although these measures look to address the issues directly 
associated with the application premises, they may not adequately control the effect of their 
patrons adding to the number of late night revellers in this part of Leeds City centre.

If granted the application is likely to increase the number of late night/early morning revelers 
in the area. Therefore, there is a greater potential for public nuisance to noise sensitive 
occupants if this application is granted. 

In addition, the application premises is situated within a Cumulative Impact Policy Area and 
you have not submitted sufficient information to satisfy this service that granting of a new 
licence will not add to the impact already being experienced.  

Therefore, Leeds City Council’s environmental action service is of the opinion that your 
application contains insufficient information about how you intend to meet the licensing 
objective of the prevention of public nuisance, and we regret to inform you that we are fully 
objecting to your application. 

If you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Yours sincerely  

M Bird 
Senior Environmental Health Officer 

Environmental protection team 
Leeds City Council 
Knowsthorpe Gate 
Cross Green 
Leeds  LS9 0NP 

Contact:  Mr M Bird 
Tel:  0113 3951162 
Fax:
michael.bird@leeds.gov.uk 
Our reference:  PREM/03146/001 

Mr Chris Rees-Gay 
Woods Whur LLP 
Devonshire House 
38 York Place 
Leeds
LS1 2ED 

23 February 2012 

Appendix E

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 "Beat Bar" - Application for the grant of a premises licence for beat bar, 66 Merrion Street, Leeds LS2 8LW
	02 Application Form - Appendix A
	03 Map - Appendix B
	04 CIP Evidence - Appendix C
	05 WYP Objection - Appendix D
	06 EHO Objection - Appendix E

	7 Certification of Films - Hyde Park Picture House
	APPENDIX A


